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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, e

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of the esteemed members of the
Board to the First (01%t) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
(IrconHBL). The Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the period from
13" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023, are already with you and with your kind permission, |
take them as read. | would like to express my sincere gratitude for making it convenient for
attending the AGM.

Ircon International Limited (IRCON”) has been awarded the work of Upgradation and Four
Laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-1 From Km.0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km.
15+100 (km 5+100 of NH 74) (‘the Project’) in the State of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity
Basis (HAM) by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In terms of condition stipulated in
Letter of Award issued by NHAI, IRCON has incorporated your Company as its wholly-owned
subsidiary and a Special Purpose Vehicle for execution of the Project.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of IrconHBL.

IrconHBL has signed Concession Agreement with NHAI on 08" March, 2022. The concession
period of the Project comprises of construction period 730 days from the appointed date and
operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation Date (COD).

As per Concession Agreement the Bid Project Cost is Rs.861 crore Plus GST (excluding
escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction
phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The
company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.447.61 crore & equity of
Rs.111.90 crore. In respect of debt, State Bank of India has sanctioned the term loan of
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Rs.447.61 crore. As on date SBI has disbursed the term loan of Rs.5.61 crore and total equity
of Rs.82.42 crore has been infused by Ircon international Ltd.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.784.58 plus applicable GST. Presently
construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 31st October 2022 and
the works are progressing on the available front.

Compliances and Disclosures

Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. As per Office Memorandum
dated 10" July 2014 and 11" July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
CPSEs constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on
your company.

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-
24, in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE) dated 10" March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 07%
November, 2022 and 06" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively.

Acknowledgements

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Ircon International Limited, Auditors of
the Company and all those who have supported and guided us during the year. | express my
deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not least, |
would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and continuous support.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,
Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 01t Annual Report of Ircon
Haridwar Bypass Limited (IrconHBL) together with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company and Auditor's Report for the period from 13" January, 2022 (i.e. date of
incorporation) to 315 March, 2023.

BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

IrconHBL, a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON International Limited (IRCON) was
incorporated on 13" January, 2022 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main object
to carry the business of Upgradation and Four Laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-1 From
Km.0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km. 15+100 (km 5+100 of NH 74) (‘the Project’) in the
State of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity Basis in accordance with the terms of Concession
Agreement with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI).

IrconHBL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 08" March, 2022. and the
concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 730 days from the
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation
Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms of technical bid
submitted by IRCON to NHAI.

Further as per Concession Agreement the Bid Project Cost is Rs.861 crore Plus GST
(excluding escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during
construction phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of
Annuity. The company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.447.61 crore &
equity of Rs.111.90 crore. In respect of debt, State Bank of India has sanctioned the term loan
of Rs.447.61 crore.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.784.58 plus applicable GST. Presently
construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 31st October 2022
and the works are progressing on the available front.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the for the period
from 13" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Financial performance indicators for the period from 13" January, 2022 to 31t March
2023:

(Rs. in lakh)
SI. No. For the period from
Particulars 13.01.2022 to
31.03.2023
1. Equity Share Capital 5.00

Directors "Report
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2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 8,294.00
3. Net Worth 8,299.00
4. Total Assets and Liabilities 8,761.81
5. Revenue from Operations 5,205.63
6. Other Income 103.92
7. Total Income (7) + (8) 5,309.55
8. Profit Before Tax 103.28
9. Profit After Tax 77.06
Earnings Per Equity Share (on face value of
10. Rs.1.0/- per sr_lare) 154 12
() Basic 154.12
(i)  Diluted

*Note: The company is incorporated on 13" January, 2022 as wholly owned subsidiary of
Ircon International Limited and this is the first financial period of incorporation of the company
hence corresponding figure of previous period not provided.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the period under review.

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the
head “Other Equity" in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs.77.06
Lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 315t March 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

Your Company was incorporated with an Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share
Capital of the Company of Rs.5 Lakh comprising of 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.
Ircon International Limited (IRCON) hold 100% of the paid-up share capital of IrconHBL.
Since, the incorporation of the Company i.e. 13" January, 2022, there was no change in the
share capital of your company.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment
Rules, 2019 dated 22™ January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WoS)
is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form.

CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.8,279.98 lakh
for the financial year ended 315t March 2023.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review, there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of
the Company.
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7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE PERIOD
FROM 13™JANUARY, 2022 TO 31T MARCH 2023:

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by the
holding company (IRCON).

As on 31t March, 2023, total number of Director is Three including Chairman, nominated by
IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows:

Category, Name & Designation Appointment or Cessation
(during the year, if any)
Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, 08556821 Appointed as Additional Part-
Chairman time Director and Chairman
on 10.10.2022
Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 -
Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 -

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Chairman (Part-time Nominee) of your Company, ceased to be the
Director and Chairman of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the
IRCON w.e.f. 10" October 2022. The Board placed on record its appreciation for valuable
contribution, guidance and support given by Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal.

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Director, was nominated by IRCON as Chairman and
Additional Part-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 10" October 2022, who hold office upto
the date of the Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice under section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma giving his candidature for
appointment as Chairman and Director, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM). His appointment as Director by Shareholders is included in the notice of the
AGM.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, all Directors of
the Company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your
Company. Mr. B. Mugunthan and Mr. Masood Ahmad being the First Directors of the
Company appointed on the same date i.e. 13" January, 2022 and Mr. B. Mugunthan will retire
by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his reappointment as Director and
his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director.

Key Management Personnel (KMP):

As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is not required to appoint any
Key Management Personnel (KMP) during the period under review.
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During the period under review, the Board met nine (9) times on 14.01.2022, 20.01.2022,
21.02.2022, 17.05.2022, 22.07.2022, 04.08.2022, 09.09.2022, 03.11.2022 and 31.01.2023.
The interval between two Board Meetings were within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the Board Meetings is as follows:

14.01.2022

20.01.2022

21.02.2022

17.05.2022

22.07.2022

04.08.2022

09.09.2022

03.11.2022

31.01.2023

Wl Wl W W W W w w w

Wl Wl N W W W N W w

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held
during the period under review:

Name of
Directors

Meeting Date

Total Board
Meeting
entitled to
attend
during the
period from
1 3th

% of
Attend
ance

No. of
Board
Meetings
attended
during the
period
from 13t

gl alalalalal &l &l o BEWERA NELIETYA
§ § § § § § § § § 2022 to 31t 2022 to
st
clelalBlelalal<]< March, 2023 315t March,
elele|lee|e|le|l=|e 2023
< o - N~ N < (<2} ™ -
- N N - N o o o ™
Mr. Ashok VI ivI|vI|v I v I v | *x |- -
Kumar Goyal
Mr. B. Y| vV | X | VI V|V |V V|V 9 8 88.89
Mugunthan
Mr. Masood VIV IV IV IV IV|*X| V|V 9 9 100
Ahmad
Mr.Devendra | - | = | = | = | = | = | = |V |V 2 2 100
Kumar
Sharma
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05" July, 2017 exempted an
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconHBL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON,
therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the declaration
by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s Office Memorandum (OM)
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11" July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are not applicable
on IrconHBL.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
318t March 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31,
2023 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT'S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need
no further explanation. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report
which require any clarification/explanation.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Ravi Ramesh & Associates, Chartered Accountants was appointed as first Statutory
Auditors, for the period from 13" January, 2022 to March 31, 2023 by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India vide CAG letter No./CA.V/COY/Central Government,
IRCHBL(1)/2010 dated May 04, 2022 which was rectify by the Members of the Company at
the second EGM held on 17" May, 2022. They have confirmed by way of a written consent
and certificate as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the period from 13®
January, 2022 to March 31, 2023 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the
Annual Report along with Non Review Certificate from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG)
of India for the period from 13" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023.

COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company during Financial
Year 2022-23.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 from the practicing company secretary is not applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the
Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are enclosed
to this report as Annexure — B.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.
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19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

20.

21

22.

23.

EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

Conservation of enerqgy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Technoloqy absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the period
under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to
the business of the Company.

. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated 5" June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.

IrconHBL being a Government Company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the
Directors' Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under review.
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members
pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your
Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate
with its size and nature of its business.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review.

COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERNCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crore and all
CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables Discounting
System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. The
Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to monitor the
compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, Government
of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the
CPSEs.. Registration on TReDS Platform is under process.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable
on the Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters
under POSH Act.

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to sexual
harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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VIGIL MECHANISM:

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing of a vigil
mechanism are not applicable to Company.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during
the financial year 2022-23, however, RTI application transferred from DPE was duly replied
during the financial year 2022-23.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June 2015, sub-sections
(2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to Directors of
Government Company.

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited,
all part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of
these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line
with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, performance evaluation of Directors
is not applicable on your company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary companies
and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 315t of March of the base year.

Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding company) and
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), will sign Annual MoU with IRCON.

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2023-24, in line with the MOU
Guidelines and IRCON vide its letter dated 06" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the
Company.
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We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-

Devendra Kumar Sharma

Chairman

DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE — A

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto during the period from 13" January, 2022 to 315 March, 2023

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Salient terms of
Duration of the | the Contracts or | Date(s) of Amount
Nature of contracts .
Sr. contracts or | Arrangements or | approval by paid as
or arrangements or : d .
No. - arrangements Transactions the Board, if |advances, if
transactions . . ; ) _
or transactions | including the | any: any:
value, if any
730 Days from
date of
appointment and
Operation & EPC agreement Mobilisation
maintenance for | executed on 2™ 22 July, advance of
1. | EPC Agreement | g rs from September, 2022 2022 Rs.24.78
commercial for Rs.784.58 crore crore
operation date
and
L A ¢ Lease Agreement
Teatsﬁ grleemetrt: One Year executed on 18t 14t NIL (A
2. gf‘; aF‘fO” jease : € 1(01.02.2022to | February, 2022 for Zgg;ary’ Date§ son
Ice rremises o 31.03.2023) rent @ Rs.21,236/-
IRCON)
p.m. plus GST.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023

Place: New Delhi
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RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES A K
—_{"'\'&:l |

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statemenis of IRCON HARIDWAR
BYPASS LIMITED ("the Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
period then ended and Notes fo the Financial Statemenis including 2 summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "Standalone
Financial Stalements",

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules,2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally aceepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 21, 2023, the profit
gnd total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended on the

ate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are [uriher described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India (ICAl) together
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial staitemenis.

Key Audit Matiers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profeszional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. Thess matters were addressed
in the contaxt of cur audit of the ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do noi provide a separate opinion on these matters,

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matiers to communicate in our report,
Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statemenis and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other informaltion comprises the information included in the Company's annual report but does not
Include the Ind AS financial staiements and our auditor's report thersan.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thareon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is te read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledgs obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
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If, based an the wark we have performed, we conclude thal there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact, We have neothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chargad with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a frue and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in Indig, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under saction 133
of the Act read with the Companigs (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amendad from
time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriaie accounting
policies;, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial contrals, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and Tair view and are free
fram material missiaterment, whether due to fraud ar errar,

In preparing the financial statements, management i responsible for assessing the Company’s
ahility to confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management gither intends to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporiing
process.

Audiior's Respaonsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis as a
whole are free from material misstatement, wheather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise fram Fraud or error and are considered material
if, individuaily er in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected io influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SA's, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemenis, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide @ basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting =
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal
cantrol,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to designl audit progcedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2q1 3, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinian on whether the company has adeguate internal
financial conirols system in place and the operating effectiveness of such centrols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management
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«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or condllions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditar's report fo the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadeqguate, to modify ocur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audi{ evidence obtained up io
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease lo continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, struciure and content of the financial statemenis, including the
disclosures, and wheather the financial statemenis represent the underlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial ststemenis may be influenced. We consider guantitative matenality and gualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit wark and in evaluating the results of our wark; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with thase charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that we identify during cur audit.

We alsa pravide those charged with governance with a siatement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicaied with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's repori uniess
law or reguistion precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that @ mattershould not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest
henefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguiremeanis

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure A, a statemant on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, tathe
extentapplicable,

2. Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obiained all the informaticn and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belisf ware necassary forthe purposes of our audit.

b. In our cpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Shest, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equily dealt with by this Report
are in agreemenl with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements camply with the Indian Accnuntl_ng
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{(Accounis) Rules, 2014,

e. Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not applicable pursuant
{0 the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 6th June 2015, issued by the Central Government of

(o

1
LR,
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With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
campany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer fo our separale Report in
“Annexure BV,

Being a governmeant company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable wvide
notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 20185, issued by the Central Government of India.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according ta the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material impact on
its financial position.

Basad on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material foreseeable losses
an long-term contracts that may reguire any provisioning, The Company did not have any
derivative cantracts for which there were any maierial foreseeable losses.

There wera no amounts which were reguired to be iransferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company lo or in any other psrson or entity, including foreign
entity (‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guaranies, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented, thai, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material ither individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been cansidered ressonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing nas come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(g), as provided under and
{b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or interim dividend during the
pericd and uniil the date of this report, iherefore, the reporting under clause is not
applicable.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Comgany with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Audiiors) Rules, 2014 is not appiicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
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3. As required by Seclion 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptroller and Audltor
General of India, we report that:

5 No| Directions

Auditor's Replies

1 Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If yes, the implications of
processing of accounting iransactions
putside |T sysiem on the Integrity of the

if any, may be stated.

accounis along with the financial implications, |

Company is using SAP system o process
gl the accounting transactions. As per the
information and explanation provided fo us
no accounting ftransactions have been
processed outside the IT System.

| 3 Whether

2 Whether thers is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiverfwrite off of
debts/loansfinterest etc. made by a lender 1o
the company due to the company's inability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. \Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? {In case, lenderis a
Government company, then this direction is
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender
compary).

Mo, Company is having no case of any
restruciuring of an existing loan or cases of
waiveriwrite off of debtsfloans/interest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to
the company's inability to repay the loan.

funds  (grants/subsidy sfc)
receivedireceivable for specific schemes
from Central/Siale Government or it
agencies were  propefly  accounted
| foriutilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviaiion

According lo  the information  and
explanation given to us and as per our
examination of records, no funds have
been receivedireceivable for any specific
scheme from Ceniral/State Government or
it agencies during the period covered
under report

Place: Mew Delni
Cated: 12! May,2023

For RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES
Charlered Accouniants

FRMN MNo. 004 iZ?N

CA SUBHASH BANSAL
Partner

q_f M.No.D85785

UDIN: 2363555 B B AL

26/36, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 Ph. 011-47055152, 45152361

20



RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES .
Chartered Accountants : m |

ANNEXURE "A" To the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred 1o in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even dats)

Re: IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED (the “Company™)

On the basils of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i) (a} A) The Company Is maintaining proper recards showing full particulars, including quantitaiive
detalls and situation of Praperty, Plant and Equipment

B) The Company has no intangible assets.

(b} Tha Property, Plant and Eguipment have beesn physically verified by the management during
the year and to the best of our knowledge and information given to us, no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification

{c] According to the information and explanations given io us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the company has no immovable properties.

{d) The Company has not revalued its properties, plant and equipment.

(e} According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Beanami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1888 (45 of 1888} and rules made thersunder,

(i) The company does not have any inveniory during the year under review, therefore clause(iiy of
Para 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 [s not applicable to the company.

(i) As informed, the Company has not grantsd any |oans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
afthe Act.

{iv} According to the information and explanation given o us, the company has no loans, investments,
guarantees or security where provisions of section 186 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are to
be complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits under
the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 78 or any other
relevant provisions of the Cempanies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, where applicable.
Accordingly, the provislons of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion Clause (vi) of Clause 3 of the Order relating to cost accounting records s not
applicable during the period under report.

{vii) (2) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed st;tutcry dues including Gnqu
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
taz, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added ta¥, cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duly of excise, value added ;ax,
cess and any other statufory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate
autharities on account of any dispute.

26/36, East Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 Ph. 011-47055152, 45152361

21



Chartered Accountants

RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES m |

(vili) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1861

(ix} {a} According to the information arnd explanations given to us and the records of company
examined by us, during the pericd under review, the company has riot taken any loans from
banks or financizl institulions.

{b) The Company has not been declared williul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govermnment ot any government authority as at the end of the year.

(g} The Company has not taken any term loan during the year.
(d) The company has not raised any funds on short term basis.

(e According to the information and explanation given fo us, the company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or 1o meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associales or joint venlures,

{fy The Company has no borrowing, including debt securities during the year,

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public ofier or further public oifer
{including debt instruments) during the year.

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any prefereniial allotment or private placement of
shares or converiible debeniures (fully or partly or oplionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Crder is not applicable.

{xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we
repart that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
hesn noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) Inour opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based on information and explanations given to us by the management, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the
details have beesn disclosed in the financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards and the Companies Act 2013,

{xiv) In our opinion the requirement of internal audit does not apply to the company,

(v} In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations glven to us, ﬂje company has not
entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or person connected with him which is covered
by Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the prowisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xul) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company i; not
required to be registered under section 45 |A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834 Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable o the Company.

(xvil) According to the information and explanations given lo us and based an the audit procedures
conducted we are of opinion that the company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial

year.
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(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xixj On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial lisbilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and basad on our examination of the
evidence supporling the assumptions, nothing has come to ocur altention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainly exisis as on the date of the audit report Indicating that
company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the daie of balance sheet as and when
thay fzall due within a period of one yaar from the balance shest date \We  however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viahility of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within 2 period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on the
company. Accardingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi) The reporting under clause () s not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause
under this report.

For RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN Mo. 004306N

SUBHASH BANSAL
Partnar
Place: MNew Delhi M.Mo. 085785

Dated: 12" May 2023
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ANMEXURE “BE" To the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report
of even date)

Re: IRCOM HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED (the “"Company”)

We have audited ihe internal financial contrels over financial reporting of IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS

LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31st 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the company for the period ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Centrols

The Company's management is responsible for esiablishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on, “the internal cantrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (IGAL)"
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efiicient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. VWe conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financizl Reporting (the *Guidance MNote") and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
ever financial reporting was established and maintained and if such conirols operated effectively in ail
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporling and their operating effectivensss. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtzining an understanding of internal financial
contrals over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the audiior's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due ta fraud or error.

\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prw_il:!e a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting _
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process desngr]ed ta provlrlle
reasonable assurance regarding the relisbllity of financial reporting and the preparation r_:f financial
statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted _apununt:ng principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes ‘thuse policies and pr_ocadures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasanable detail, e_.cc:umtely and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonatgle assurance lh;t
transactions are recorded as necessary to parmit preparation of financial statements in accerdance uftih
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are ba“;g
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and_ directors of the company, and (3)
- == provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or limely d_ete-:tmn of unaulhr.:-rlzgd acqu:ssimtn. use,
-S4 e r disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

[+X
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporiing

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporiing, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of conirols, material misstatements due o error
ar fraud may occur and nof be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
contrals over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial repariing may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Cpinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate intermal financial controls system over financial reparting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporiing were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
“hbasad on the intemal conirol aver financial reporling criteria established by the Company considering
the essential componenis of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India”,

For RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES
. Chariered Accountants
FRMN No. 004 308N

R

CA SUBHESH BANSAL
Partner
M.No.085785

N GEWOE S
SN Pl
\}\‘i i st

Flace: Mew Delhi
Dated: 12" May,2023
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Ireon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023
Al amaunts in Jidian Rupees Lokhs wnloss othenslse stared)

Particulars Mot Ag at 315t March, 2023
ASSETS
Mo Current Assets
(ay Praperly, Plant and Egugpnient 3 031
(b} Ehefemred Tax Asscts (net) 1 12
() Financial Asseis
(1] Oiher Finomcial Assois 3 pad
i1 Ouher Nen-Correm Assals B
Total Non-Curren| Assels .35
Cwrvent assots
() Financil Assets &
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents Gl i 82
{ii) Loang =
tink Other Fusinciad Assers &3 329916
(6] Cuorrerd Tax Assels (M) 7 (5]
{2} Other Comenl Asscls i 341745
Totnl Current Assets 8.761.46
TOTAL ASSETS §.761.81
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Guwity Share Capiial > 500
(1) Oiber Equity 10 B.,2%94.00
Tutal Equity 8,299.00
Linhilirges
Mon-Clurvent Linhiliies
fa) Finaucal Liabilities
(1) Lenae Lisbilties -
1§} Trade Payables
- total outstanding ducs af mienn enlequises atd sl coleprises -
- 1otal autstanding docs of creditors other than of micro enterprizes-and small cnterprses =
Total an=Currend Linbiliries =
Current Liabilifies
(n} Finnncal Liakifities
(1) Lease LinbTiies -
(i) Trode Payables 1
- Aol ol standing duos of wigre ente o ses and sumll cterprises 11 |
- total cutsianding dues of ereditors ather isn of miem enterprises 2l small eaterpnses 1 330,97
[mi) Oibeer Fimamgiad Liabalities IF.2 053
by CHbszr Currenl Liabilitics L2 1500
(e} Cuvent Tax Linbilitics (Net) I3 =
Total Current Linhilities 46151
TOTAL BOUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,761.81
Summary of siznificant sccounting policies 2
The secom panying notes ave an Integeal et of e leancial stitements, I o 38

As per our report of even daie -
For Ravi Ramesh & Associaies :

[CAl Firm Registration No. - 004306M
riered Accouniants

Plave: New Delhi
Date : 12.05.2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

[Director
(DIN:-08517013)

F

Masood Abmad
I Hrecior
(DN -09008553)
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209D1L2022G 01392406

Statement of Profit and Luss for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023

(A1l amoums in dndian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise siated)

For the period from 13th
Particulars Note ) .Iﬂnunr}a 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st Mareh
2023
Income
Fevenus from operations 4.1 520563
Cither ineome 2 10392
Taotal Encome (A) 5.309.55
Expense
Project Expenscs 15 5,050 B4
Empleyes benelils expenses 16 2479
Fingnce Cosle 17 934
Diepreciation and amartization expenses 3 010
Other expénses 18 T30
Total cxpenses (B) 5.206.27
Profiti Loss) before tax (A-B) 10328
Tux expenses 4
Currgni tay 26.24
[rzferred 18 (net) (0,02}
26,22
Profit/(Loss) for the periad TTA6
Dher comprehénsive income/(loss)
A lems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax telating 1o liems that will not he reclassified to profit or loss :-
B} Iems that will be reclazsified 1o profit or losz =
Income tax relating fo lems that will be reclass fied to profit or loss 2
(Mher ecomprehensive income/{loss) for the period (net of tax) =
Tatal Comprehensive incomed(loss) for the period T7.06
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Per Equity Share Rs. 10) 7
Bagic 154.12
Litiled 154,12
sSammary of significant accounting policies 2
The aceompanying notes are an integral po et of the fnancial statements, 1 to 3%

As per our report of even date
For Ravi Ramesh & Associales
[CAl Firm Registration Mo, : 004306M

Place: New Delhi
Date : 12.05.2023

For and on behall ol the Board of Directors
Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

O
f

—l T

& il
Mufum ajlﬂ]n wila  Masood [Ahmad
Director Direceor

(DIM:-08517013) (M -0B008553)

b&/.,
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406

Cash Flow Statement for the period from 13th January 2022 to 315t March 2023

(Al amcsists i Tndien Rupeés Lakhe malose otherese stated)

Particulars

For tive pecind From 1300
Jumisiry 3022 {Doie of
imenrpe rption) to 315t Margh
2023

A Cash Row from aperaling activides
Prafit before my

5
Adustnengs for e
deprcedat lnndAmertization [ R
Inerest [nea e (10382
luberest Expumses 0o
L om o sposal of asscis 5
il Dizhds
Tas Toer the Cartier Years :
Crperuting profit before warking capital ehnnses [T
Muvem ends in workiog cugiial:

Increasel(dlecroazel in niber non-eurreit linkilihy %
Ingreasei{deciesseh in othes correst financial Habilides f5%
Inercaseddecreasey in Cervent Trade Pagables 35125
Inoicageidesyeate) in other non-cwrent fnancial labilines .
lperense/fdacaaise) in other cwromt liabificy 05,00
Icreaseeciedse ) in nop-cunen provisions 2
Incriase/fddo tveitsg ) o) cument provisiong "
[eerensesmercase) in iwadc recoivalbles n
Deicimed iieense) in invenieries "
Prroimedincrease) imnon corrent Gnncinl loans A
Deoreasedmercase) m Loans & cuvenr Fnaseig| psseis {5250, 16)
Dezieniefmercase) i other Mon-curenl assets (i
Dreciensedincrease) in other curent pssera (5.0 17.45)
Cash Geverated from Opersiton (B250T1)
L Inecme Tox Pmd 6,37
Met cish fow fromiTescd g operating actlyvithes (A} {B,279.98),
B, Crigh Mows fram investing aciivitics
Puschase of 'IME (242
litterest Inomng | [{RRLE
el gasl Mas Fron S wsed Tod dnvesting uerivithes [ 1) 103,50
L, Cash Mow Troo Minmneclng o etlvliles
Proec i fm fiveh i3spe of slare cagital 500
Inilctest cxpetises LR
Lo From lréom Interootional Luniled bs guast cagital H.llﬁ.‘lﬂ.
Mot cash Now feom/iesed o) in Gonaoncing aclivities () 8,21 1.30
Mot e vessel{deerease) in cisshoand ensh eguivalents (A + B +C) 44 82
Cnsh nnd eash equivalens o the begiming of the penod
Clhusing cush ol eush equivalents 44,52

Partialars

Asnt 3=t March 2023

Components of ensh and cash equivalenis®
s on hand

A.02

- With Lonks m qwrent ooeount
= Drepogil with original miinnly of bess it 3 ndushs LA ]
Total ensh anid cash equivalents as per Balanee Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows 4,52

*Enrman ke Fard
“ales:
1, Flusires i brnckets indicate cash avtflow

2 The Stakement of Cash Mows has been prepaced undor the Indireet meflod set oot i nd AS=7'Stntenent of Cash Flow” noiified onder the Companies (Indion A ceonnting

Stanlonds) Rukes, 2003

3. Recrmeihiaion of Coash and Cish Equnabenes and Conspanents of Cash and Cash Equivalents inclaced m ihe above Statement of Cash Flaws :

!\'ummqry ol ui'nirlcn nka cmunﬁ\rg pnﬂti(‘!

The accompanying nutes ave an Integral pret of the financinl statements,

A peer war report of even dile
I Bavt Bamesh & Associaies
10AT Fiem Hegseeation Mo, @ (K306 =

CA Snl
Poriner

Place: New Delhi
Deate ; 12.05.2023

;|
o 38

For wnd om behalFof i Board f Directors
Ireon Haidwite ypnss Lilted

Wi Boj Ca
Divecton
{085 L7013

A

28

3 Qg\

o=

et

e

Masood bl
Diarecoor
{ DN 00855 1)



Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL022G 01392406

Statement of chanyes in eguiry fur the periad from 13t lanonry 2022 do 2ist March 2023

AT cmensieta i Priefian Tigpees ekl e olienuire siareed

0] Eaquity Sleare Capital

Prticiibans

AR R

Balnare as ar L3h Jammary 2027

Clianipes in equity shice capliad doring the perind

500

Dafonceasat Vst March 2023

S

il Otber Equity

Porticiilars

Resonves & Surplas

Relained Earmings

DHher Compreheigee lncone s e ity

Tarmd

Balamer as at 13k Jagnary 3073

Tistad growfit fr the periad

ither comprehimee income far the period
Total consprelensive Bconse for the preriod
| Additinn in Dunsi Cruity

1307

- §,215.94)

TRaT

1.7
E2165]

Asoat 31 M orch, 2023

= 821694

H201

Summnacy of significant necodnling podicicy
The neeamyizinying notes nre an lwiegesd part o the Onoseind siaiemens,

As per our report of even dare

r Ravi Hamesh & Associsies

Wil Finn Repistration Mec + 0043060
teved Acqoumois

104 Mambership Mo, | 0BSTHS
U

Plaze: New Dellid
Date = 12052013

1
Vo dE

For and on behal T ol the Board of Direciors
Irenm Haridwar Bypass Limiled

<
Mugu bt Iq‘.;i-] T

i reator
(DIN:-DES 170N
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended Mareh 31, 2023.

1. Corporate Information

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited (the “Company™) is domiciled and incorporated in India and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), public sector construction company
domiciled in India. The Company (CIN U45209DL2022GOI392406) is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India.

The Company came into existence when IRCON was awarded the work of upgradation & construction
of four laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-I from Km0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km 1 5+100¢
Km5+100 of NH-74) in the state of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity basis In pursuant to the provisions
of “Request for Proposal”, the selected bidder ‘IRCON® has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
named Ircon Haridwar bypass Limited as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated on
13.01.2022. Accordingly, the Company has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAL on 8"
March, 2022 for the project value amounting to Rs 861 Crore. The Concession period is 15 vears from
Commercial Operation Date (COD) and Construction period is 730 days from Appointed Date. The
registered office of the company is located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017.

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR), Figures in financial
statements are presented in lakhs, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share data and as
otherwise stated.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company’s Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 12.05.2023

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I}, as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting. The Company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

® Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present value
® Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
° Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

22 Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of the financial statements
are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the financial statements.

2.2.1 Current vs non-current classification
- The Conipany presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
{ ——classification.
: hi An'asset is treated as cutrent when it is: &/_-
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023.
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&)

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

¢ o @ @

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:
o |tisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle
¢ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Itisdue to be settledwithin twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Recosnition and Initial Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic bencfits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost.

Cost of asset includes

a) Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates

b) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met’

¢) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its
working condition for the intended use

d) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized a3 part of the indirect
construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction or is incidental
thereto.

¢) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site
on which it is located if recognition criteria are met.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost of

the expenditure can be measured reliably.

Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

,The .machinery spares are capitalized if recognition eriferia are met.
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Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on praperty, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold land acquired
on perpetual lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
specified in schedule II of the Companies act. 2013

However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than those
prescribed in Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, The useful life has been assessed based on
technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage of
the asset on the basis of the management’s best estimation of getting economic benefits from the
asset. The estimated useful life as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to accounts.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the

useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/- are
fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones
provided to employees are charged 1o statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the
original cost of the asset” as specified in Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assct is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories

.are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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a)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Revenue recognition

Service concession arrangement

Financial Assets Under Service concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Revenue

from Contracts with Customers)

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“"NHAI") for the
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services),

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value i.e. present value and subsequently at amortized
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Under this method, financial asset will be increased
for the financing element and reduced as and when money is received from grantor

Ind A5 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers)
The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction and Operation & Maintenance
services) in accordance with md AS -1{5*Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Company combine the two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same customer
and account for the contracts as a single contract if contracts are negotiated as a package with a single
commercial objective or amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends on the price or
performance of the other contract or goods or services promised in the contracts are single performance
obligation.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is contractually
agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is
allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts collected on behalf of third partiesi.e
GST and is adjusted for variable considerations

The nature of Campany’s contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration including
escalation and liquidated damages.

Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance obligations in the
contract on the same basis as at contract inception

The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal
in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of
revenue Lo be recognized on variable consideration using most likely amount method.
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Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognized as revenue, or as a
reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any of the
following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity perform

b) The entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the assel is created or enhanced or

) The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and

the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation.
The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated
cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to reasonably
measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred
in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognise revenue only to the extent of the costs
incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. A
Cumulative calch up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which entity is able to reasonably
measure its progress,

Performance obligation is measured by applving input method. In the contracts where performance
obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, which faithfully depict the
Company’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price.

The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the
existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added
that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are
accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not
priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract balances

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned

consideration that is conditional

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer
to accounting policies of financial assets in section (XX) Financial instruments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement,

// =1 Eﬂnh‘ai:l liabilities A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
whichithe Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the cuslo&ta/_
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023.

2.2.5

2.2.6

contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is duc (whichever is earlier).

Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and right to reccive the

income is established as per terms of contract.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Taxes
a) Current income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is
determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is
recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted al the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates fo items
recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other

~. comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
. underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended Mareh 31, 2023,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised (o the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.2.7 Foreign currencies

® Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

e Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange
rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for
assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical
cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions,

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date,
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in
the statement of profit and loss on net hasis.

2.2.8  Employee henefit

a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related
Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement
of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

b) Post-employment benefits and Other Long term Employee Benefits

The Post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon
International Limited. the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the
Holding Company.

and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with original d

b=
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maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

2.2.10 Dividend

Annual Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the
period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as
liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend
distribution, if any, is recognized directly in equity.

2.2.11 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liahilities
a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passapge of time is recognised as a finance cost.

b) Onerous contracts

An onerous confract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the Company has a
contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates,

¢) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that
may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic

- benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made,

—
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
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d) Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits
is prabable.

22.12 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

a) Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumnulated
depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii)] Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease inceniives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also mclude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate

at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
__determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
,f‘ Al accrct;un of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of
{ = ‘lease habllllles is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
-E_lcasc mmcnts (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
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determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asseL.

The Company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities
iii) Short term lease and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases contracts
including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases that have a Jease term of 12
maonths or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered
to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

b) Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature, [nitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

2.2.13 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

SHEJSE‘HHEH! measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

= Debtinstruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for eollecting
coniractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

""_::; After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
Saising the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
unt any discount or prcmlum on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses ansln'afl”

G0N0
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from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables,

o Debt instruments at FVTOCT

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b. Coniractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity
to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

= Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCIL, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

e Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification 15 made on initial recopnition and is irrevocahle,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
\Cghqurlll%i deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
,J Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FY'TOCI

-f Lease receivables under Ind AS 116 fl
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d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f. Financial puarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follaws ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;

*  Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
*  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts lo recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses” in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

= Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until
the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrying amount.

* Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i e. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which
remains at fair value, Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset
was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the
‘accumulated impairment amount”

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

.. - financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
i ! ,G"agset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the

. I.':_'I};‘J
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The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received /
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and megsurement

All hinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of direct]y attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings other
financial liabilities etc.

Subseguent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as deseribed below:

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

e Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Loans, borrowings, trade pavables and other finemcial liabilities

After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in statement of profit or lass when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and |oss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of 2 new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

¢} Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amartisation.

. Reclassification of financial assets

e Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
iter initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
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instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments. a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model oceurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations, If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.

The Company does nat restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
gains or losses) or interest,

€) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.2.14  Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
i5 significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

s Leve| 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

fFor assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
ﬁgmpany dctermmes whether transfers have accurred belween Ievelq in the hierarchy by re-assessing
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whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any, At cach
reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

2.2.15 Non - current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale 1s considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is
expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified
as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance
sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale” are no longer met, the
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as
held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases
to be classified as held for sale. The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the
period when non-current assets held for sale criteria are no longer met.

2.2.16 Prior Period Adjustment

2.2.17

2.2.18

Errorsfomissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50%
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
accessing performance of the operating segment of the company

Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share,
net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding
ing the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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2.2.19  Significant aceounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by
the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
existing circumstances. The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the
reporting date, or that occurred after that date bui provide additional evidence about conditions
existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual
results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other
assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in
the financial statements in the period in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing 4 material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

a.  Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems not be collectible.

b. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on
all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can
be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company 18 involved. it is
not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of
probability.

¢. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the Company’s past history. existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpreiation of complex tax regulations, changes in
tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The
Company establishes provisions. based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required fo determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, hased upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

e Impairment of non financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use caleulation is based on a DCF model.

f. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as
lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
|

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

g. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time afier reasonably
estimating its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The recognition of revenue requires assessments and judgments to be made on changes in work
scope, claims (compensation, rebates ete. ) and other payments to the extent performance obligation
is satisfied and they are probable and arc capable of being reasonably measured. For the purpose
of making estimates for claims, the company used the available contractual and historical
information.
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Computers Tuotal

As at 13th January 2021 = 5
Additions 0.42 0.42
Disposals/Adjustments = B
Transfer to Asset held for sale = 5
Exchange Gain/ Loss = 5

As at 3lst March 2023 .42 0.42

As at 13th January 2022 a =
Depreciation charge for the period 0.10) 0.10
Impairment -

Disposals/Adjustments = &
Transter to Asset held for sale . 4
Exchange Gain/ Loss 5 3

As at 31st March 2023 .10 .10

MNet book value

As at st March 2023 0.32 0.32

Nede:
{i) Depreciation is provided based on useful life of assets which is in line with the uscful [ife prescribed in schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013 and

disclosed o5 under

Asset Class Liseful life adopted and as per
Scheduole 11 {in vears)
Compater 36

(it} There 15 no cluss of assets where the Company uses different wseflal 1ifz than those preseribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Bzl
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6 Current Assets - Financial Assets

6.1

6.2

Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Balances with banks:
Earmarked Funds
- On current accounts 502
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 39.80
Total 44.82
Current Assets - Other Financial Assets
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security Deposit -
Contract Assets:
Contract Assets under SCA 5,205.63
Intt Receivable from holding company 93.53
Total 5,299.16
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Taxes Paid including TDS and Advance Tax (Net of provision for tax) 0.03
Total 0.03
Other Current Assets
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
{Unsecured and considered good)
Advances Recoverable from
-Goods & Services Tax {G5T) 027.62
Advances to contractors(Holding Co) 2.478.00
Prepaid Expenses 11.83
3,417.45
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

CIN:-U45209DL2022G01392406

Notes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

19 Diselosure as per Ind AS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates®

20

21

The amount of exchange differences (net) credited/debited to the statement of profit and loss is Nil.

Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 on Employee benefits

The employees in Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited are posted on nomination/ secondment basis from Ircon Triternational Limited {Holding
Campany).

In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.8) and arrangement with the Holding Company, the provision for Retiremer
Benefits such as provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits of nominated emplaoyec
is being made by Holding company in terms of Ind AS-19, The amount paid or payable towards provident fund, pension, gratuity, pe:
retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits to the holding company are included in "Employee Benefit Expenses” (Nat
16).

Provident Fund Contribution of the emplayees on nomination/secondment have been regularly deposited by the holding company with its P.

Trust.

Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 *Related Party Disclosures® are as under:

a)  List of Related Parties
(i) Holding company
lreon International Limited
(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Non Exeeutive Directors
Name Designation
Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal {w.e.f. 13th January, 2022 to 10th October, 2022) Director from Ircon
Shri Masood Ahmad (w.e.f. |3th January, 2022) Director from Ircon
Shri Mugunthan Baju Gowda (w.e.f. 13th January, 2022) Director from Ircon
Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma (w.e f. 10th October 2022) Director from Ircon
Remuneration 10 Key Management Personnel: Company had Part-time and Non Executive Directors during the financial year 2022-2
and 2021-22, nominated on the Board by the Holding Company, do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is pai
to Part- fime and Non Executive Directors.
b) Transactions with other related parties are as follows; {Rs. in Lakhs
For the period fron
. 13th January 2022
Nature of transaction Name of related party ; ; (Date of
relationship
incarporation) to
3lst March 2023
1} Reimbursement expenses 6. 2(
2) Rent Expense (inclusive of GST) 3.51
3} Investment in Equity Shares 5.00
4) Works Contract lreon International Holdi 5,099 8:
. ; . 2 olding Company
5) Loan from holding company- Quasi Equity Limited B.216.%¢
) Moblization advance to Holding Co 2,478.0¢
7} Interest Income on mobilisation advance 103.9C
¢) QOuistanding balances with the related parties are as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs
Mature of transaction Name of related party MNature of As at 31st March,
relationship 2023
Balance Payable a.f; m:‘ reporting date : ' Yoo Titeenatinnal _ 327.21
Outstanding Moblization advance to Holding Co (Including Limited Holding Company 2.571.5:
Interest Receivable on advance)
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G0O1392406

Notes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length (ransactions.

(ii) Bala_m:e.s payable of related parties at the reporting date are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balanc:
are interest free except mobilization advance on which interest is charged at rate of average of one year MCLR of top 5 Schedule

commercial bank +1.25%
22 LEarnings per share (EPS)

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per share'

(a) Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity share

outstanding during the period,

(b} Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit far the period atiributable to the equity holders afier considering the effect of dilution b
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would b

issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

(i) Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

Parficulars Note For the period fron
13th Januwary 2022
{Date of
incorporation) to
J1st March 2023
Profit attributable to Equity holders (Rs, in lakhs) {ii) 77.06
MNo.of equitty shares 50.000.00
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS (In Numbers) {iii) 50,000.00
Earnings per share {(Basic) 154,12
Earnings per share (Diluted) 154.12
Face value per share 10.00

(ii} Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

For the period from
13th January 2022
{(Date of
incorporition) to
31st March 2023

Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. in Lakhs)

Profit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS (Rs, in Lakhs)

7706
77.06

(iii) Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos.)

Particulars

For the period from
13th January 2022
(Date of
incorporation) to
31st March 2023

Opening balance of issued equity shares

Equity shares issued during the period

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS
Dilution Effect:

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted KPS

Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year

50,000,000
50,000.00

50,000.00

Note: Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of shares outstanding from the date of incorporation adjusted by th
number of equity shares issued during the period multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number o
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Ireon Haridwar Bypass Limited

CIN-U4SZ0DL22 G013 2406

Notes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(Al ameunts i Indian Rupess Lakbs unless otherwise stated |

13 Impairment of Assets
During the perind, Company has carcied out assessment on impairment of individual assets by working aut the recoverable amount based on lnwer of the net realizable vali
and garrying cost in terms of Ind AS 36, “Impairment of Assets” notified under section 133 of the eompanies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indizn Accountin;
Standardsy Rules, 20015 and Companies (Indizn accounting standards) Amendment Rulas 2016 Accordingly, impairment loss of Nil has been provided for "

14 Provision, Contingencies and Commitments

fa)

{h}

(ch

(d}

Provisions

Ne provisions provided during the year as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Cantinigent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'

Contingent linbilities

Mo Claims agains! the Company acknowledged os debts as on the reparting date as per Ind A3 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingant Asseis’,
Contingent assels

No claimes in faveur of the company accounted as receivables os on the reporting dete as per Ind AS 37 Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Comtingent Assels’

Commitments
Capital- Estimated amount of contracts remaiming o be execuied on capnal aecoum (Met of advanceyand not provided for i3 Nl
Other: Contractior EPC Waork rémianing for execution on March 31,2023 Bs 7367210 |akh

25 Segment Reporting

i)

(i)

(iii)

General Information

Operating segments are dofined as componenis of an enterprise for which diserets financial information i available which is being evaluated regularly by the Chie
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Bosrd of Directors of the Company is the Chief Oparating
Desision Maker (CODM). The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development in the state of Uttarskhand and the Chief Operating Decision Muke
{COLM) monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no separale segment needs (o be disclosed in aceordance with the requirements of Tne
AS 108

Information about geographical information

As the Company operates ina smgle geopraphice] segment i e India, henee no separate geographical segment {5 disclosed.

Information about major customer

For the period ended March 3151, 2023, Revenue of Rs. 5205.63 Lakhs wre derived Ffrom a single customer i . NHAIL which is more than 10% of the Com pany™s (ol
TevEnUE

26 Financial Risk Management
The Company's principal financial habilities compriss irade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial abilities 15 to Gnence the Company's operstions
The Company®s principal financial assets include reccivables and cash and short-term deposits. The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of finencia
inslruments.
4} Credit risk,
b} Liquidity risk
) Market risk
This note presents infonmation about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company®s objeclives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk,

Risk Management Framewark
The Company’s aclivities make 1t susceptible 1o various nisks. The Company has taken adequale messures to address such concerns by developing adequale systems pn
practices. The Board of Directors has overall respansibility fior the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framewoarts,

i)

Credit Risk

Credit risk 15 the risk of financie! loss to the Company if 8 cestomer or counterparty to g financial nstrument fils to meet its contractual obhligations resulting in:
financial loss 1o the Company. Credit risk arises principally from wade receivables, cash and cash equivalents with banks and other financial asseis. The Company'
exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties gre continously monitored by the mansgement.

Cash and eash ¢quivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held in public sector banks with strong credil ratings.

Trade Receivables and other financial assets

The Companys exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the characteristics of the customer, The demographies of the customer, including the default nisk of the
industry and couniry m which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit nsk assessment. The Company derives revenue primtarliy from the Construction o
Expressway and other fnancinl assets primarily relates 1o the unbilled revenue under Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) The credit risk ansing from these trade
receivables and unbilled revenue is imited because the counterparty 15 Natlonal Highways Authority of [ndis (WHAI), an autonomous agency of Government of India
with capacity to meet the obligations and therefore, the risk of defult 15 very neglipible or Mil.
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CIN:-TU45200DL2022CG 01392406

Notes to financial statenients for the peciod from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(Al amounts 10 Indizn Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(i) Exposure to credif risk

(Rs, In Lakhs)
Particulars 31 arf2
Financial Assets for which allowance is measured using life-time expected eredit loss as per simplificd approach
Oher Mon current Finaneial Assels 001
Cash aml Cash Equivalents 44,82
Other Current Financial Asseis 5,299 16

{iiy Provision for expected credit losses
Mo impairmant loss fas been recopnised during the reporting period.

(iii) Summary of loss allowance measured using simplified approach: - {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars J1/Marf2.
Opening Allowances
Prowided for the peniod =

Mtilization for the period
Amount written ofT

Closing Allowances

by  Liguidity risk

Liguichity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with ils financial liabifitics that are settled by detivering cash o
another financial asset The Company®s approach lo minaging liquidity 15 to ensare, a5 Far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity 1o meet its liab lities when the:
wre due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unazceptable losses ar risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Liguidity position of th
Comnpany 15 reviewsd on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions ere tiken aveording fo the siluation

The tahle below provides details regarding the significant financial liabilitics as at 31 March 2023 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As gl 3151 March, 2023
Less than | Year 1-2 Years 2 years and above
Trade Payables 35123 -
Other Financial Liabilities (.58 =i
¢) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affeet the Company’s meome. The objective of market risl
managemant i5 to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Board of Directors is responsible for seting
up of policies and procedures 1o manage market risks of the Company.
{f) Forcign Currency risk
The fumectional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Cormpany 15 not exposed taany forsign currency risk.
(i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 15 the nsk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changds in market interest rates: At the reporting
date the company 1s exposed to interest rate risk in respect of deposits with bank.

At the reporting date, interest rate profile of the Company's interest begring financial imstruments is as follows

Par tivolars 31/Mari23
Fixed rate Instrument =
Financial Asset 39.80
Financial Lizbilities .
Floating rate |nstroment
Financial Asset
Financial Liabilities
19.80
27 Fair Value Measuremenis
#) Financial instruments by category
Parliculars As al 31st March, 2023
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assels at Amortized Cost
(1] Other Mon current finangial assets - - {101
(ii} Cash and eash equivalents - 44,82
(i) Oiher eurrens fnaneinl asgets - 529016
- 5,343.99
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
{1} Trade Payables 351.23
(i) Other Onancial liabilities » 6 58
- 357.81
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CIN;-U45209DL2022GO1392406

Motes ta financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 1o 31st March 2023
(A1l amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwize stated)

b

o

Fair value hicrarchy

Financial assets and financial lighilities are measured ar fair value in these finaneial statements and are grouped inta three levels of & fair valuc hierarchy, The thre
Levelsare defined based on the obssrvability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1. Quoted prices {unad) usted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilites,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoled prices ineluded within Level 1 thet sre observable for the asset or liability, sither directly or indirecthy.

Level 3 Unobservebls inputs for the asset or liability,

Carrying value and Fair value of fnancial assets and linbilities as at 31st March 2023

Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value
Level-1 Lewel-2 Level-3
Financial Assers at Amortized Cost
(13 Other Non current financial asssts 0.1 - . 001
(i) Cash and cash equivalenls 44.82 - - 44 B2
(iii) Other current financial assets 5,299 16 - - 5,209 0¢
5.343.99 - - 5.343.9¢
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
(i) Trade Payables 151 23 - - 35123
(i) Other financial liabilnics £.58 S - 6.5k
357.81 - - 357.41

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, and other eurrent inancial assels / liabilities approximote their carmying amouns
largely due to the shon-term maturitics of these instruments, The fair valus of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amaount at which the instrument coul
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

28 Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital ars to safeguard its ahility 1o continue 25 8 going concerm and to optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of th
company is based on managenicnt’s judgement of its sirategic and day-to-day nesds with a foous on toal equity soas to maintain investor. crediters and market con fidence. Tl
menggemant and the Board of Directors monitor the return on eapital. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its eapital structure.

29 Revenoe

Al

Disappregation of Revenue
Set aut below is the disaggregation of the compeny's revenue from cantriets with customers into operating segment and type of product or services

Fuor the perisd from 13th Janwary 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023
TJIM;:P'.-ULI“H o Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring performance obligation Other Revenue Total as per Statement
rvices
of Profil and Loss
Domestic | Foreign Total Input Method Dutpnt Method
Highway 5.205.63 - 520563 5.205.63 - - 5.205.63
Total 5.205.63 - 5,205.63 5,205.63 - - 5.205.63

The revenue of Rs 5203 63 Lakhs 5 recogmscd over a period of time.

Cantract balanees

Particulirs As at 31st March, 2023
Contract Asscts (MNote 6.2) 520563
Contract liablity =

Contract Asseis are recognised over the period in which services are performsd to represent the Company's right to eonsideration in exchange for goads or service;
teansferred to the customer. It includes balances due from customers under construction centracts ther drise when the Company receives payments from customers as pe
lerms of the contracts however the revénue 15 recognised over the period under inpot method, Any amount previoushy recogmsed as 8 contrac) asset 15 reclassified i
rade reesivables on satisfaction of the condition atteched e, flre service which is necessary 1o achieve the billing milestone

Movement in controcl balances during the period

Particulars As at 3lst March, 2023

Comtract asset al the Beginning of the period -
Contract asset at the end of the period 5205 63

Met inerease/{decrense) 520563

For the period ended on 31.03.2023, there has been nét increase of Rs. 5205.63 Lakhs due 1o recognition of revenue based on input method whareas bills for workdont
are ecrtified based on contract condition. There i5 no reclassification from unbilled revenue to tade receivibles during the period.

@/;
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Motes to financial statements for the perfod from 13th January 2022 to 3135t March 2023
fAI amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unlass otherwise siated)

30

)} Contract liabilities relating to construction eontracts are halances due 1o customers, these arise when a particular milestone payment exceeds (he revenue recognised b
date under the input mathod and advance received in long term construction contracts, The amount of Advance received gets adjusted over the constriction period a
and when mvoicing 15 made fo the customer.

Partivalars Aot 3Tst March, 2023

Contract liabilities at the Begioming of the period
Coatract habilibies af the end of the period
Met increase/{ decrease) B

€. Setout below is the amount of révenue recopnised from:
Particulars

A at 315t March, 2023
Amaunt included in confract Habilitics at the beginning of the petiod -
Performance obligation satisfied in previous period .

0. Cost to obfain the confract
The Company has net incurred any incremental costs of obtaining contracts with a customer and therefore, not recognised an asset for such casts,

E. Transaction priee alloeated to the remaining performunce obligations

The transaction price for remaining performancs obligations shall be received over the contract period in proportion of the work performed/services provided by U
Company.

Information sbout the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:
The transaction price allecated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partiolly unsatisfied) as at year end are, as follows:

Particulars As at 31.03.202:
Within one year 62,455 B4
More than one year to 2 years 18.714.40
Wore than 2 years 2917

Toral 81,219.41

* The amount disclosed above does not includs variable consideration which is constrained,

Service Concession Arrangements

Public te private service concession arrangements are recorded in actordancs with Appendix "C'"- Servies Concession Armangements (Ind AS-115). Appendix "C" iv applicable
if:

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, 19 whom it must provide them, and at what price, and

b) The Grantor controls- through ownérship, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement
If both of the above conditions are met simultanecusly, a financial asset 15 recognized to the extent that the operator has an uneonditicnal contracioal right to receive cash or
ather finencal assel tom o al the dscretion of the Grantar for the servace

Thesz= Iinancial assets are initially recognized at cosl, which 6 understood as the Bur value of the service provided plus other dirsct cosis dirgethy attributable o the cperation
They are then stated st amortized cost at the end of edch financial year.

lezon Haridwar Bypuss Limited (IrconHBL)Y has entered into service concession arrangament with Mational Highway authority of India (INHAT) dated Bth March 2022 in term:
af whick MHAT {the pranter) has authorised the eompany to carry the business of upgradetion & construction of four laning of Hondwar Bypass Packege-T from Km. 0000
{Km IER+100 of MH-38) to Km. 15+100 ( Km 5+100 of NH=74) in the stste of Uttarakhand on Hybnd Annuity Mode. In terms of the said agreemen! IrconHBL has w
ablipation to complete construction of the project of four laning of Haridwar Bypass section and to keep tha projest assets in proper working condition ineluding ¢l project:
assels whose lives have expired. The Propect |5 under Annuity pattern.

The Concession period shall be 13 years commencing from the Commercial operation date, At the end of the concession peried, the assats will be transferred back o Nationa
Highweay Autharity of India (NHAT)

In case of material breach in terms of sgreement the NHAL and lreonHBL have right to terminaie the agreement 17 they are not eble to cure the event of default in accordance
with such agreement

Company has recognized financiel asset of Rs 520563 Lakhs under service concession agreement upto the period ended 3151 March 2023 affer 1aking inio account th
receivables due from NHAIL an completion of milestone as per terms of the contract. The company has reeognised revenue of Rs 5205 63 Lekhs for the period ended on 3¢
March 2023 on construct:on of Road under SCA and Operation Revenue as per Ind AS - 115 related to "Revenue from Customers” The company has recognized receivable
under service concession arrangement and shown under Cther Financial current Assets which it will receive as per terms of the contract based on the complelion of milesion:
s on 35t March 2023
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN-145209DL2022G 01392406
MNotes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 315t March 2023

(Al amounts

in Indizn Rupess Lakhs unless otherwise stoted)

Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Tnd AS 115
In terms of the disclasure requited in Appendix Din Ind AS =115 Revenue from Customers, as notified in the companies (Indian Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amour
ennsidered in the finansial statements up to the balace sheet dale arc a5 follows:-

Purticulars
For the period from 1310
January 2012 { Date of
incorporation) to 3150
March 2023
Contract Revenue Recepnized 52056
A perepate amount of gast incurred 22056,
Amouni of ndvance received from Client
Amount of retention by Client
Profit| Loss| recopmised during ihe period for exchange of consiuction service for a financial asset
Gross amognt dug from Client for Coniract Works 5.205.0,

31 Leases

u)

Company as a Lessee

{i) The Company has no leasing armangement which are non-cancellable in nature, Accordingly, no right of use assets and lease |ishilities have been recognised by th

Cartpany.

{ii) The Company has taken Office on leage with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘shori-term lease’ recognition exemptions for such leases

The following are the amounis recognised in Statement of profil and loss

Particulars

For the period from 13t
Janwary 2022 (Date of
Imearparation} to 31si

Murch 2023

Expense refaling to short-tenn leases (Refer Note 18)

151

b)

Company as a Lessor
Company has no legsing arrengement &5 & lessor

3X Details of delaved pavments to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S.MNo

Partieulars

Asat 3]st March, 2023

a)

b

c)

d}
o)

The principe! amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid ta any supplier as at the end of ach accaunting year:
- Princapal amount due to miero and small emerprises

- Interest due on above
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MEMED Act 2008 along with the amounts of the payment made to

the supplier beyond (he appiinted day dunng cach accounting year

The amount of mberest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but withowt adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaming unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The emount of further intergst remaining due and payable even in the susceeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above dre
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Sectian 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
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Irean Haridwar Bypass Limited

CliN:- LS00 L 202 2G 01392406

Motes to linancial statemenis for the period from 13th Jeonary 2022 to 315t March 2023
{All amounts in Indian Rupess Lakhs unless otherwiss siated)

33 Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Aet, 2013 und no CSR expenditure hes been incurred during the period.

34

35

Diselosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act 2013:
There sre ne loans given, myestments made and guarantee given by the Company during the penod

Other Statutory Disclosures
The MCA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule Il lo the Companies Act. 2013 in respeet of certoin disclasures which arg applicable from Ist Apr

2021,

i1
{if)
(i}

{iv)

()
(wi)
(vit
{viti)
L)

{x)

fxr)

(1)
i)

(xiv)

{xv)
(2wl

The Company has incarparated the changes s per the said amendment in the financial statements end below disclosures are made in compliance of the said amendment

The company does not have Immovable properties hence the question oftitle deeds in the name of eompany does not arisc.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

The Company does nol have any Capital Work- in- Progress, Investmenr Property, Intangible Assets and Intangible Asséts under Development as at 315t March, 202
and 315t March, 2022. During the year 2022-23 and 2021-22, the company has not revalued any of its Property, plant and equipment,

The Company has no transactions with eompanies struck off under sectian 248 of the Campanics Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the period

The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virual currency during the penod,

The Compngy do net have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

The Company do not have any prier perind ermors to be disclosed scparately in statement of changes in equity:

The Company do not have any charges ar satisfaction ol charges which is yet to be registerad with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not advanced o loaned o invested funds 1o any other persan(s) or cntity(ies), including Toreign entitics (Intermediaries) with {he understinding the
the: Intermediary shall:

{a) dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 1 any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantag, sécurity or the like to or on behalfof the Ultimate Bensficiaries
The Company has not received any fund [rom #ny person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded o
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{a) direcily or indwectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whaseever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b} provide any guarantes, security or the ke on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries

The Company does not have any loans and advances in the nuture of Joans 10 pramoters, directars, KMP and other related parties except the mobilization advance of Rs
247800 laks

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorty.

The Company dogs not have ary transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been subsequently surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year as part of the ongeing (ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such a3, search or survey or any ather refovant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1951,
Tho Company has not made any investmeant therefors complianee of namber of layers preseribed under clause B7 of section 2 of the Act read with companies {restriction
on number of bayers) rules, 2017 |5 not applicable

The Campany has not entered into any scheme(s ) of arangoments during the financial yvear.

The Company does nol have any tansaelions where the company has not wsed the homowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which |
was taken al the balance sheel dale.

(xvii) Company is not required 10 submit statement of current assets with the banks or financial institutions and thersfore reconciliation of the statement filed by the compan;

with banks or financial instilutions and the hooks of account is not applicable.
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Treom Fioridwinre By s Limited
CING-UR200DL M E2GON 3924046

Notes 1o finnncial starements for the period fram 130 Jenwiry 2022 (o 315t March 2023
LA mounts in Indion Bupees Lakhs unless otherwiss gaed)

{5viil) The Mllowing sceomsting miios ane disclosed: -

S.Mo |Particeulnrs Numeratur Dheviaim ta b Melurch 31, 2023 e whainge Reason for chinge moic
il 15%
ay  (Current ratio Cuirreiit Asscls Corven Linklifies 1883 MAY NA?
b1 | Delitseguiny mtie Tatnl Db Shareholde’s Cquity .06 M. A* NAY
ch | Debi service coverage mtio Enmings for debr servige = | Debiservice = [ilerest 0.00 Nias MNAY
Mot profit afier teces + Moo & Lesss Poyments -
cash aperating exponses | Pringipal Repaymen|s
di [Rern on egquity mtls Mot Profis afer taxes = | Aversge Shareholder's o1 WoAE MiA*
Proferencl Diwidond Enuity
&) |lwvesstory tunsee) i Cost of poods sold Averige Inventory .00 it N.A®
N | Pederecevables nmover seio Meveredit sales= Gross Aveeape Trade 000 M.Ae N.A*
crudiz splos- wles emm Reeemable
e} | Temle pay able iommaver miio Nat crodiv purchases = Average Trade 14,53 NoA N.A*
Girvss credit porchases - Payabiles
mrrchise relnm
hy  |Met capital mmaver miin Mer Sales = Total sales- Working cipitat = 0.63 NoA* BAY
sales returh Cusrent assets —
Cument ishilitics
B [Mel profit ragin Net Profil et Sules = Tolal sabies. 001 NoA® MoAs
aales et
3 |Rasm em eapitnl employed Enrmings before interes) | Cipial Employved = aol A NA"
nnidl. tewes Tanuille fel Wortly +
Tea! Dl + Deferred
Tax halilizy
kY [Fetum on mivestuag) Ingomnse gersraned from Imveéstment o.on M.AT A
Imvestiends | Finance
[ncame)
= As phe finmirciol stuementy are prepored fir tha et g, the percoit chaige fn the ratle & venson for chasge docs s apply,
36 Cowvid <19 Disclosare
The Company hos considered lie possible effects that may vesidt freme Covid-17 i he pegpaation ol 118 Toanciol resalts inchiding the recowerabiling of camig amonnts ol
finnneiel and non-financinl assets. In developing the assumpicons relatmy 1o the possible future unceraintics i e glolwl ecomonic condinmms: bocimss of Covid-19. the
Cuumpairy b disieed internnl and exteninl Spurcas of Dfamintion and expects il the sanying amoind of the agsets will b recovaed
The actval dinpact of this global health pasidemic niay be different from that which hos been estimated, 65 the Cavid= 11 situalion evolves 1 lidia ond lobilly. However, the
Compary will contimie to¢lesaly moniton ay material clanges (o ffure econsmniy conditions
37 Hecent promouncement

Minisiry of Copparate Affams (*MOA") Gotifies new standards or smgidments w e esiating simdands under Companies {ndim Accownting Standnrds) Rules as ssued lom
fiiise tos time i Mawch 31,2023, MCA amended the Campani s {Indian Accommting Standands) Amendinent Bules 2023 g5 below:

Il AST- Freseniation ol Fiancal Siatemes - This amendment requices the eatities fe disciose thelr materid siceounting policies mithier thon thair sign ifican acconating
policies. The effective dote for adopinn of this anendine) i g atnnal periods begimingt on or after Apnl |, 2023, The Conpany bas evalimted e smendment b e fmpoct
of e mnendmend is insigmificant in the Tl sacments

Inel A% 8- Accounting Molicies, Changes io Accounting Estimvales and Ervor - This nendment fas inreduced o definition of *accounting estimaies’ and incleded amendmenis
o lind ASE o help entities distingush ehanges in aceaunting pelicies from changes in accomting estimates, The effective date for adoption o s ameindimen i ouel periods
beginming am or afier Aprl [ 2025 The Compiany has evalunted the amendment and there is 0o ipact o 5 finaseial slenmnts

Ind AS 12 - leome Takes = This wmepidn gl las nacrowed the scope of the ilial recognition exemption so that & does nol apply 1o isseetons il give rise o eoual amd
aificting remporaty. Jifforences, e efechve date for adeption of this anendment is. nwwml periods beginnan g on of alier Apel |, 2023 The Compiug has evatustsl the
sanend meat and [here i3 no fmpact on 15 fsancenl starement

AR Oiher disclosures

(i) The lreon Hirdwae' bypass vl waig incorporated o0 13k Jamary 2022 a5 a wholty cwned: subsidiary o Treon Indens ol Limied, This s the first Onaneml
sttement o the penad froom Fih Sonvacy 2022 to 315t Karch 2025 md henes, eomesponding Nigoees of the previous yeor me nof peovided

(i) The Staie Bank of lndia { 531) has sancrioned the werm boan of Be 447 61 coore however contpany [1as ool availed loan s al 31,03,2023

(liEy e Company has o system of obtaming pericdic confimntioa ofF balarces from bonks and other parnics

tivk In the opindan of the manigement, the waloeof assels on reilisalion in the ardinary course of business, will nol be legs thay (e value ot whiels these are stated in the
Balance Shoat

%) Figures rowmded off 't the neavest nupees in Lakh

For wntl on behnll of the Banred of Dircetors
Treon Haridwar Bypass Limilgd

As per oor veport of even date
g Ravi Rawnesh & Assnciates
I Firn Registeation Mo, © D 306N
el Acoonmnianes

Birectar
(MM

'\ FRNO0MEISN
q'\l;:::n" HI,

f.

Place; New Delhi
Date : 12.05,2023

@,//
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*,“ X’ fr‘ Office of the Director General of Audit
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‘;}M""# C/o Comptroller and Auditor General of India
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e,
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-4, foren $g arda,
73 feit-110007

fawa: 13 T 2022 F 31 HTE 2023 F AT a4 & 0 v sRER agu™
faftes & fa=iia fAavon w Su=t afuf o 2013 F uRT 143 (6)(b) &
Siarfa WRY & fFdae vd wereauitas ot femfory |

¥ 3o+ gRgr a=uy fffiee & 13 =gl 2022 9 31 A 2023 & 9o a9
& fa<iig faawoll e ot ifSf=Te 2013 F URT 143 (6) (b) P HdiTd HRd & =P Td

HeETETiaRs &t fewiorl siiffa T3 |
D 54 UA DI Gaud! Hied Wil $1 gradt Ui A
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED FOR THE PERIOD FROM 13
JANUARY 2022 TO 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited for the period
from 13 January 2022 to 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139 (7) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2023.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to
conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
for the period from 13 January 2022 to 31 March 2023 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor Genera!l of India

Place: New Delhi Dr. Nilotpal Goswami
Dated:72.07.2023 Director General of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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